BEFORE THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

OF THE STATE OF MISSOURI

In the Matter of the tariff filing of The

)

Empire District Electric Company
 

) 


to implement a general rate increase for

)
Case No. ER-2004-0570

retail electric service provided to customers
)


in its Missouri service area.


)

PUBLIC COUNSEL’S RESPONSE TO

ORDER DIRECTING FILING

COMES NOW the Office of the Public Counsel (Public Counsel) and files this response to the Commission’s “Order Directing Filing Regarding Ex Parte Contact and Hearing Procedure” issued on August 4, 2004:

1.
Subsequent to the “on-the-record presentation” held on July 26 and 27, 2004 regarding Empire District Electric Company’s (Company’s) motion to lift the suspension of Its Proposed Interim Energy Charge (IEC), Company’s counsel sent a letter to all parties with a description of ex parte communications between Company’s counsel and Administrative Law Judge Thompson ( “July 28, 2004 Letter” ).  Public Counsel learned from this Letter that as early as June 22, 2004 Company inquired about whether the on-the-record presentation could be held at an earlier date.  Ibid., p. 2, paragraph 2.  Although this communication appears to be procedural in nature, inquiring about an earlier date is arguably close to arguing the substantive issue of whether “time is of the essence” with regard to Company’s request for interim rate relief.  It is also unusual for discussions regarding the potential rescheduling of a procedural date to occur without all of the parties to a case being privy to those discussions.

Despite these concerns, and based solely on the information that has been made available thus far, Public Counsel has no reason to believe that an improper ex parte communication (that is, a substantive communication going to the merits of the cause) occurred between Company’s counsel and Judge Thompson prior to the on-the-record presentation.  Therefore, Public Counsel does not request any specific further relief relating to the communications in question.  

2.
Moreover, the Commission’s “Order Denying Motion to Lift Suspension of IEC Tariff”, issued on August 11, 2004, denied the interim rate relief sought by Company.  It would thus appear that any ex parte communication regarding the request for interim rate relief would be of little concern, given that any potentially improper activity would likely constitute harmless error.  

3.
Public Counsel appreciates the fact that the Commission is taking this matter seriously and that it has granted the parties the opportunity to address matters that may affect their due process rights in this case.  

Respectfully submitted,
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